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Connecticut State Colleges and Universities 
 

Request for Proposal (RFP) CSCU-1807 

 
CUSTODIAL SERVICES 

 

                        Amendment #2 - Questions with Answers 
 

1. In looking at the gross and net square footages provided, there seems 
to be a larger than industry standard reduction form gross to net. 
Typically the reduction is in the range of 15% to 20%. In some of the 
campuses, the reduction you provide is as much 30% to almost 35%. Is 
there any explanation for such a large reduction because in walking the 
facilities, it did not appear that it would be that large of a reduction? 
Net square feet does not include mechanical and electrical rooms, 
elevator and mechanical shafts, and other areas that would not be 
cleaned by custodial staff as well as square feet occupied by interior and 
exterior wall thicknesses.  Net and gross square feet have been provided 
in the RFP for informational purposes.  Although these value have been 
compiled from electronic area takeoffs from existing floor plans and are 
CSCU reference values.  No assurance of the accuracy of these numbers 
as it relates to this bid will be provided.  Building floor plans are available 
so that contract bidders may conduct their own area takeoffs.   
See RFP specification section III.B.        
 

2. The RFP states that the contract term is for 5 years. The pricing page provided allows for 
one price with the unit of measure being “Annual” Should respondents make copies of 
this Price Schedule and submit a separate annual price for each of the five (5) yrs.?   
The bid amount submitted on the Revised “Attachment A – Part II” form as issued in this 
amendment will be the annual base amount of a 5-year contract.  As the rates of the 
CBA and Standard Wages increase, adjustments will be made to the base amount 
consistent with those increases at that time.  No other increases shall be accepted.   
 

3. During the walk through at Housatonic Community College, the question was raised as 
to whether the cleaners were represented by SEIU Local 32BJ. The answer provided was 
that all cleaners ere represented by SEIU Local 32 BJ with the only exception being 
Charter Oaks. Per SEIU Local 32 BJ the cleaners at Housatonic Community College are 
non-union. Can you confirm or clarify?  To the best of our knowledge Housatonic and 
Charter Oak – not union, the other Colleges – are union.  Please verify with union. 
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4. This site just recently was signed up by the union. Are the cleaners being paid the same 
rate as other sites or is there a ramp-in for their wages and benefits?   
CSCU does not set wages and benefit rates.  Please contact the union representative 
who should be able to answer all union related questions. 

 
5. Which locations are union and which locations are not?  

To the best of our knowledge Housatonic and Charter Oak – not union, the other 
Colleges – are union.  Please verify with union. 
 

6. Which locations have a day porter, number of porters and are they full or part time?   
Capital – 1 full time day staff 
Charter Oak – 0 day staff 
Housatonic – 1 full time day staff 
Middlesex – 1 full time day staff 
Norwalk – 4 full time day staff 
 

7. Will the Day Porters remain on staff during school breaks and summer recess? No 
 

8. Are trash liners supplied by contractor at Middlesex only? Yes 
 

9. Housatonic and Norwalk have Saturday hours listed on schedules and days of operations 
(page 10).    What areas are they cleaning?  Is it done day or night?   How many hours 
are spent on Saturdays per location?  For Saturday cleaning reference question no. 28. 
 

10. The net square footage seems to be roughly 30% or more of the gross 
square footage in some locations.   Can you confirm the square footages 
are accurate?  Net square feet does not include mechanical and 
electrical rooms, elevator and mechanical shafts, and other areas that 
would not be cleaned by custodial staff as well as square feet occupied 
by interior and exterior wall thicknesses.  Net and gross square feet have 
been provided in the RFP for informational purposes.  Although these 
value have been compiled from electronic area takeoffs from existing 
floor plans and are CSCU reference values.  No assurance of the accuracy 
of these numbers as it relates to this bid will be provided.  Building floor 
plans are available so that contract bidders may conduct their own area 
takeoffs.  See RFP specification section III.B.        
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11. At Housatonic services are Monday through Thursday 10:30 PM to 7:00 AM and Friday 
2:30 PM to 11:00 PM.   Are these full timers?  Is there a reason one is working 
overnight?   Saturday is 3 PM to 8:00 PM.   How many employees and what areas are 
they cleaning?  Housatonic cleaning services Monday through Thursday 10:30 PM to 
7:00 AM is the time frame provided for the contractor to complete the work.  It is 
expected cleaning will start at 10:30 PM and be completed as early as can occur and 
would routinely not require cleaning staff beyond the normal completion 
time.  Overnight staff is not requested.  For Saturday cleaning reference question no. 28.  
 

12. Norwalk has the hours listed Monday through Friday 5:30 AM to 2:00 PM.  Is this a full 
time porter?    Evening cleaning is listed as 1:30 PM to 10:00 PM.   Is that correct?   Then 
it states Saturday general cleaners.   What areas are done on Saturdays and how many 
people are needed for how long?   
Reference question no. 63 for day custodial staff.  1:30 PM – 10:00 PM is correct for 
evening cleaning hours.  Reference question no. 28 for Saturday custodial staff.  
 

13. Then it lists Monday through Friday between the hours of 8:00 AM and 4:30 PM.   Is this 
another day porter? Reference question no. 63 for required day custodial staff. 
 

14. Lastly, One (1) full time working supervisor literate in the English language with a 
minimum of two (2)years' employment with the contractor, or the prior contract holder, 
acting in a supervisory capacity to ensure supervision of the work force and to 
guarantee that work is performed nightly in accordance with the specifications of the 
contract.   Would this be one Supervisor for the portfolio, or one Supervisor for each 
location?  
RFP section IV.O. 1 requires one full time working supervisor at each campus (one per 
location) and RFP section IV.O. 3 requires one district supervisor/manager for a 
minimum of 5-hours per week.  The district supervisor/manager may oversee multiple 
locations.   

 
15. We would like clarification on the Attachment A-Part II of the Price Schedule.  Please 

provide clarification as to what is to appear in the right hand column labeled Total 
Price.   Is this a total price for five years, or is it an annual amount?   And how do we 
account for the 5-year pricing?   
The bid amount submitted on the Revised “Attachment A – Part II” form as issued in this 
amendment will be the annual base amount of a 5-year contract.  As the rates of the 
CBA and Standard Wages increase, adjustments will be made to the base amount 
consistent with those increases at that time.  No other increases shall be accepted.   

 
16. How will CSCU determine the payment method year to year?  

The bid amount submitted on the Revised “Attachment A – Part II” form as issued in this 
amendment will be the annual base amount of a 5-year contract.  As the rates of the 
CBA and Standard Wages increase, adjustments will be made to the base amount 
consistent with those increases at that time.  No other increases shall be accepted.   



4 
 

17. If this is a five year contract starting July 1, 2018 it will run through June 30, 2023, the 
CBA ends on December 31, 2019.   If a three year agreement is reached it will run 
through December 31, 2022, therefore are we are speculate the cost for two CBA’s?  
The bid amount submitted on the Revised “Attachment A – Part II” form as issued in this 
amendment will be the annual base amount of a 5-year contract.  As the rates of the 
CBA and Standard Wages increase, adjustments will be made to the base amount 
consistent with those increases at that time.  No other increases shall be accepted.   

 
18. Can you please tell us the current vendors at each location?  

Capital - ABM Janitorial Northeast, Housatonic - Advanced Cleaning Concepts,  
Middlesex – Temco Facility Services, Norwalk – SMG, Charter Oak - SMG 
 

19. Can you provide the current pricing for each location? Capital – $225,272, Housatonic - 
$381,616, Middlesex - $228,656, Norwalk - $1,083,000, Charter Oak - $35,760   
 

20. Are the cleaning specifications and the cleanable areas in this bid the same as the 
current contracts that are in place?  There may be similarities but the cleaning 
specification issued in this RFP is not the same cleaning specifications issued in previous 
college cleaning RFP’s as well as the prior college RFP specifications were all 
different.  The cleanable areas listed between previous RFP’s and this RFP may differ.    
 

21. At each location, there seems to be a significant difference in the gross 
square footage to the net (cleanable) square footage. For example, at 
Capital CC, on floors 2-10 (Not including floors 5&6) there is 10,000-
15,000 square feet on each floor that the successful vendor will not 
service.  I just want to confirm that the cleanable square footages are 
accurate and the successful vendor will have areas at each campus that 
they are not responsible for?  
Net square feet does not include mechanical and electrical rooms, 
elevator and mechanical shafts, and other areas that would not be 
cleaned by custodial staff as well as square feet occupied by interior and 
exterior wall thicknesses.  Net and gross square feet have been provided 
in the RFP for informational purposes.  Although these value have been 
compiled from electronic area takeoffs from existing floor plans and are 
CSCU reference values.  No assurance of the accuracy of these numbers 
as it relates to this bid will be provided.  Building floor plans are available 
so that contract bidders may conduct their own area takeoffs.   
See RFP specification section III.B.        
 

22. The square footages at Capital CC do not add up, can that be corrected?  For Capital 
Community College the total Gross Square feet (GSF) and Net Square Feet (NSF) listed in 
RFP section III.1 should be modified due to a adding error from 266,967 gsf to 275,951 
gsf and from 168,640 nsf to 174,640 nsf.  There are no changes to any of the floor areas.  
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23. Can you provide copies of the sign in sheets from the site tours at each 
location?  Attached to Amendment no. 2 
 

24. If the current contracts are not currently Qualified Partnership contracts, there is 
potential for union seniority issues and layoffs if the current staff does not meet the QP 
criteria of one-third of the staff being persons with disabilities and one-third of the staff 
being persons with disadvantages.  Are the current contracts Qualified Partnership 
contracts?  
To the best our knowledge none of the current contracts are a Qualified Partnership.   
 

25. Is being a Qualified Partnership Connecticut Community Nonprofit Alliance required 
under this RFP? No 
 

26. How much weight will being a certified Qualified Partner be given in the 
evaluation?  Qualified Partnership can total up to 5% of the total evaluation points. 
 

27. If we are a certified Quality Partner with the Connecticut Community Nonprofit Alliance 

and are awarded a contract from this RFP, could we elect to not participate in the QP 

program for this RFP? Yes. Please include this provision within your bid response. 

 
28. On page 10 of the RFP, section L, Schedules and Days of Operation – There are Saturday 

hours at Housatonic CC and Norwalk CC.  What are the cleaning expectations on 
Saturdays for each of these campuses?  Are all areas of Housatonic and Norwalk used on 
Saturdays?   
Norwalk: 
Most areas of NCC are used on Saturdays.  One janitor is to be provided on Saturdays for 
each side of the campus (2 janitors total) to clean high traffic building common areas 
and restrooms as well as other areas as directed when needed. The areas that required 
multiple cleanings are the common areas, café and cafeteria, fitness center and locker 
rooms, childcare center and restrooms 
 
Housatonic: 
Saturday cleaning at Housatonic is reduced compared to weekday cleaning 
requirements.  Although none of the buildings are closed, not all spaces are available for 
use.  A reduced custodial staff six (6) should be provided to only clean spaces that have 
Saturday uses.   

 
29. Firm pricing for five years?  

The bid amount submitted on the Revised “Attachment A – Part II” form as issued in this 
amendment will be the annual base amount of a 5-year contract.  As the rates of the 
CBA and Standard Wages increase, adjustments will be made to the base amount 
consistent with those increases at that time.  No other increases shall be accepted.   
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30. No bid bond or performance bond? Correct 
 

31. 32BJ Union, pricing increase per contract? 
The bid amount submitted on the Revised “Attachment A – Part II” form as issued in this 
amendment will be the annual base amount of a 5-year contract.  As the rates of the 
CBA and Standard Wages increase, adjustments will be made to the base amount 
consistent with those increases at that time.  No other increases shall be accepted.   
 

32. Qualified Partnership percentage? 
Qualified Partnership can total up to 5% of the total evaluation points. 
 

33. Cost of background checks to be paid by Contractor? Yes 
 

34. Lightbulbs cost vendor? Mechanical change?  
Changing lightbulbs is not part of the base contract and is considered additional work.  
 

35. Copy of Current agreements? Not provided 
 

36. Hand delivery of proposal okay? Yes, but before April 2nd 2PM EST. 
 

37. Gross vs Net explanation –  
Net is cleaning space only. Gross includes walls, stairways, elevators, mechanical 
shafts… 
 

38. Outside window cleaning – Exterior window cleaning is not part of the base contract and 
is considered additional work 
 

39. All union – To the best of our knowledge Housatonic and Charter Oak – not union, the 
other Colleges – are union.  Please verify with union. 
 

40. Are the cleanable square footages for each facility accurate? The 
cleanable square foot figures you have provided in the RFP are much 
less than they should be.   
Net square feet does not include mechanical and electrical rooms, 
elevator and mechanical shafts, and other areas that would not be 
cleaned by custodial staff as well as square feet occupied by interior and 
exterior wall thicknesses.  Net and gross square feet have been provided 
in the RFP for informational purposes.  Although these value have been 
compiled from electronic area takeoffs from existing floor plans and are 
CSCU reference values.  No assurance of the accuracy of these numbers 
as it relates to this bid will be provided.  Building floor plans are available 
so that contract bidders may conduct their own area takeoffs.   
See RFP specification section III.B.        
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41. Is the minimum materials inventory on page 17 required for the 2 Charter Oak buildings 
as they are very small?  
Minimum inventories for Charter Oak can be adjusted below the RFP requirements. 
 

42. Since the Charter Oak sites are non-union, are they still subject to the standard rate and 
benefits? Yes  
 

43. Is exterior window washing part of the contract? I do not see it in the RFP. Exterior 
window cleaning is not part of the base contract and is considered additional work. 
 

44. Are we pricing for 1 year or the 5 years of the contract? Please understand that the SEIU 
contract expires Dec.31, 2019 so pricing after that will be estimated.  
The bid amount submitted on this form will be the annual base amount of a 5-year 
contract.  As the rates of the CBA and Standard Wages increase, adjustments will be 
made to the base amount consistent with those increases at that time.  No other 
increases shall be accepted.   
 

45. On page 10 of the RFP under Norwalk CC what are the hours for Saturday service as they 
are not given. ?  
Norwalk Community College cleaning hours 
Daytime cleaning 
Monday through Friday between the hours of 5:30 AM – 2:00 PM  
Evening Cleaners 
Monday through Friday between the hours of 1:30 PM – 10:00 PM   
Saturday Cleaners 
Between the hours of 8:00 AM – 4:30 PM 

 
46. Can the district supervisor/manage requested on page 13  be multiple people or do you 

need one specific person for all site s. Also, how is this affected if less than the full 
portfolio is awarded? 
The district supervisor(s) could be multiple people.  If a full portfolio is not awarded a 
district supervisor is still required at no less than 5-hours per week. 

 
47. Page 29, GG. Worker Retention 
The SEIU phone number is an automated attendant from which you can select the Hartford 
office.  The Hartford office automated attendant allows for selection by name only, not by 
function. 
For each of the 4 schools, please provide the Local 32BJ representative name, phone 
number and email address.  Please call: 860‐560‐8674 X 1131 
 
48.  Charter Oak State College. 
Please confirm this site is non-union. Charter Oak State College is non-union. 
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49.  Please provide the name of the current janitorial services contractor for each location. 
 

Capital Community College 
ABM Janitorial Services Northeast, Inc. 
Contact: Patrick McGinley 860-241-9494 
 
Middlesex Community College 
Tempco Facility Services 
Robert Benedict 860-392-8656 
 
Housatonic Community College 
Advanced Cleaning Concepts 
Peter Clarke 203-336-8804 
 
Norwalk Community College 
SMG Corporate Services 
Fran Perez 203-648-5913 
Louise Linsky 203-925-6103 
 
Charter Oak State College 
SMG Corporate Services 
Michelle Michaud 203-954-6557 

 
50. Thank you for the follow-up. Can you confirm that this is union wage scale?   

Yes, to the best of our knowledge except for Charter Oak and Housatonic.  Contractor 
should call the union to confirm. 
 

51. Which of the 5 community colleges now have a collective bargaining agreement with 
SEIU Local 32BJ for janitorial services?  
To the best of our knowledge Capital, Middlesex and Norwalk have collective bargaining 
agreements.  Contractor should call the union to confirm. 

 
52. Which sites, if any, currently utilize unionized labor? To the best of our knowledge, yes, 

except for Charter Oak and Housatonic.  Contractor should call the union to confirm. 
 

53. Is it permissible to for a vendor, who is already a Qualified vendor with CT Alliance, to 
bid outside of the partnership program? What percentage price preference is given to a 
vendor who acknowledges they will participate in the program after award of the 
contract?  
Yes. Please include this provision within your bid response. Qualified Partnership is up to 
5% of the total available points. 
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54. As this is a state bid, we were expecting to see an Invitation to Bid (ITB) that 
corresponds with the state templates (e.g., click link for example). Will an ITB that 
matches the state’s boilerplate be provided or no? 
No.  Please comply with the format provided in this RFP.   

 
55. Will the provisions of C.G.S. 4a-59 be followed in determining the lowest priced 

vendor? The awarding contract will be given to the highest scoring bidder in a multiple 
criteria evaluation. 

 
56. It was mentioned in the pre-bid call that cost (60%) and vendor track record/quality 

(40%) would be assessed to award a vendor. We do not find corresponding language in 
the RFP. Can you please articulate what criteria will be used and what weighting will be 
applied to each criterion to score and evaluate vendors? Reference RFP section V. A & B 

 
57. Please explain what methodology will be used to calculate from the bid sheet an 

expected contract price. Reference RFP section V. A & B 
 

58. RE: “Evaluation of Proposals (P. 31) … Provide certification the applicant is an SBE/MBE, 
if applies.” Is certification by the state of Connecticut the proof that will be accepted by 
CSCU?  Also, is a price preference given to SBE/MBE respondents and if so what is the 
price preference?  Certification by the state of Connecticut for SBE/MBE is acceptable.  
SBE /MBE will total 5% of the available points. 

 
59. Please confirm that the Meriden Center (not visited during the walkthrough) is out of 

scope for this RFP?  The Meriden Center is not part of this bid.  
 

60. On the conference call it was stated that all colleges except Charter Oak were union. 
a. Would you please verify this by location? 

To the best of our knowledge Housatonic and Charter Oak – not union, the other 
Colleges – are union.  Please verify with union. 

b. If a college is not union, will we have to bid it as Union in anticipation of a change 
to Union in the future? No 

c. As Union wages and benefits don’t go out past 2019, are we to project wages 
and benefits beyond that? 

i. If we project beyond 2019 and the actual new wages/benefits when 
negotiated exceed our “guesstimates”, will you allow us to adjust our 
cost to the actual costs? 

The bid amount submitted on this form will be the annual base amount of a 
5-year contract.  As the rates of the CBA and Standard Wages increase, 
adjustments will be made to the base amount consistent with those 
increases at that time.  No other increases shall be accepted.   

 
 
 

https://biznet.ct.gov/SCP_Documents/Bids/45719/18PSX0007_ITB_Document.pdf
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61. Can you re-verify gross/net square feet by college?  (specifically HCC & NCC). 
a. Housatonic seemed to have large disparity between gross and net.  Do HCC gross 

numbers include the parking structure? 
Net square feet does not include mechanical and electrical rooms, 
elevator and mechanical shafts, and other areas that would not be 
cleaned by custodial staff as well as square feet occupied by interior and 
exterior wall thicknesses.  Net and gross square feet have been provided 
in the RFP for informational purposes.  Although these value have been 
compiled from electronic area takeoffs from existing floor plans and are 
CSCU reference values.  No assurance of the accuracy of these numbers 
as it relates to this bid will be provided.  Building floor plans are available 
so that contract bidders may conduct their own area takeoffs.   
See RFP specification section III.B.  Housatonic’s parking structure is not included in the 
GSF & NSF and is not part of this bid. 

 
62. Please verify that each college will supply consumables (toilet tissue, plastic liners, trash 

bags, hand soap, paper towels, etc.).  is only exception, Middlesex where we have to 
supply trash bags?  
Reference RFP section IV.S.2 for items supplied by each campus.  
 

63. Hours were posted for day staff by school (especially NCC).  How many day staff are 
required each weekday (Mon-Fri) by location (Capital, Housatonic, NCC)? 
Capital – 1 day staff 
Charter Oak – 0 day staff 
Housatonic – 1 day staff 
Middlesex – 1 day staff 
Norwalk – 4 day staff 
 

64. Explain how Housatonic completes their daily furniture set ups and take downs. 
The day custodians will complete this work as part of their daily task. 
 

65. Please provide links to specific current cleaning contract by location.  Not provided 
 

66. Must we staff cleaning for entire cleaning hours designated? (e.g. if shift was 8 hours, 
can we staff with 2 four hour cleaners instead)? Contractors, as part of their bid, shall 
provide a staffing chart that proposes how they would complete the work at each 
campus that they submit a bid for, RFP section V.B line 6.    
 

67. For periodics, can floor/carpet techs who perform work be non-union?  
Union remains union 

 
68. Can you confirm that this is union wage scale?   

Union wage scales shall apply for union sites. 
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69. Please advise if a non-union company is eligible to participate in your RFP? Yes 
 

70. Have the specs changed from the last contract?  If so, please indicate additions and/or 
deductions.  
There may be similarities but the cleaning specification issued in this RFP is not the same 
cleaning specifications issued in previous college cleaning RFP’s as well as the prior 
college RFP specifications were all different.  The cleanable areas listed between 
previous RFP’s and this RFP may differ.    
 

71. Is the required full time working supervisor required for each school location or can that 
person be combined for all sites? One Working Supervisor should be dedicated full time 
to each college.   The district supervisor(s) could be multiple people.  If a full portfolio is 
not awarded a district supervisor is still required at no less than 5-hours per week. 
 

72. Please give dates for summer sessions at each school  Specific summer session dates will 
differ from year to year and may differ slightly from campus to campus.  Reference RFP 
section IV.M, sections 1-6 that map out typical annual key dates and time frames. 
 

73. Please provide standard wages for each site.  Attached to Amendment no. 2 
 

74. Please define “academic year” for the porter required “during the academic year” (may 
be just for Middlesex?)  An academic year for Middlesex Porter services is a spring and 
fall semester.  A porter is not required for a summer and winter intersession.   

 
75. On the walk through it was stated that the awarded vendor will need to have insurance 

coverage for art work and a precious artifact at Housatonic Community College.  Please 
define what type of coverage we will need to procure from our insurance 
company.  Reference RFP Attachment 1, Contract Provisions, line 5.   
 

76. On page 16, Section 5 it says the current contractor provides trash liners at Middlesex 
Community College.  Is this the same for all sites or just for Middlesex Community 
College?  Contractor provides trash liners at only Middlesex. 
 

77. Please clarify who is to provide paper goods for the colleges; the awarded vendor or 
individual colleges.  
The colleges will provide to the contractor items listed in RFP section IV.s.2 
 

78. As we make our best faith effort to retain existing workers, will a worker who is a 
current union member remain a union member under the new contract? Yes 
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79. Please confirm that the initial contract term is only one (1) year.   
The bid amount submitted on this form will be the annual base amount of a 5-year 
contract.  As the rates of the CBA and Standard Wages increase, adjustments will be 
made to the base amount consistent with those increases at that time.  No other 
increases shall be accepted.   
 

80. Are there rooftop anchors on the building for window cleaning?  
Window cleaning under this contract is interior only. 
 

81. Please confirm that the colleges will be responsible for the purchase of lightbulbs and 
that the awarded contractor will be responsible for changing bulbs as required.   
Changing lightbulbs is not in this contract.  Light bulb changing by a Heavy Cleaner 
would be considered an extra service. 
 

82. Please provide a list stating which colleges utilize union workers and which do not. 
To the best of our knowledge Housatonic and Charter Oak – not union, the other 
Colleges – are union.  Please verify with union. 
 

83. Please confirm that all SF listed in the RFP is correct cleanable SF for each of the 
colleges.  See RFP section III.B 
 

84. Please provide the current staffing levels for each college.  
The RFP and Addendums offered guidance for specific manpower requirements.  The 
bidders are to determine the required staffing to complete daily, weekly, monthly and 
annual requirements unless indicated otherwise in the amendment.  Contractors, as 
part of their bid, shall provide a staffing chart that proposes how they would complete 
the work at each campus that they submit a bid for, RFP section V.B line 6.     
 

85. As CSCU desires the awarded vendor to offer employment to the current staff at each 
college, please provide a list, by college, detailing each staff member by title, years 
worked and current compensation.   
Staff lists cannot be distributed prior to an intent to award a contract with a vendor(s). 
 

86. Please provide a scope of cleaning requirements during spring/winter/summer 
breaks.  Contractor will be required to propose work completion schedules for all 
contract work.  
 

87. Please provide a scope with frequency for interior and exterior window 
cleaning.  Cleaning exterior windows is not part of this contract.  
Cleaning the interior side of exterior windows should occur annually.   Exterior window 
cleaning is not within this contract. 
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88. Please provide a copy of the mandatory site visit sign in sheets.  
Attached to Amendment no. 2 
 

89. Please provide a list of the companies currently providing custodial services at each of 
the sites, as well as the current annual amount of the contracts, by college.  
Reference questions no. 18 & 19. 
 

90. Please provide a copy of each active collective bargaining agreement for the custodial 
workers at the colleges.  Please contact the union. 
 

91. Please clarify scope of window and glass cleaning? 
Exterior window cleaning is not within the scope of this contract.  Interior side of 
exterior windows shall be cleaned annually.  If allowed by union job descriptions, a 
heavy cleaner, light cleaner or janitor may complete cleaning interior face of exterior 
windows.  Contractor to coordinate staff window cleaning requirements with union job 
descriptions.      
 
 
 

 
 


